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OFM Answers to Bidders' Questions 
 
This OFM Answer to Bidders’ Questions may only explain or clarify some aspect that is already 
addressed in the RFQQ.  But some of the answers may also supplement or change what was 
previously stated in the RFQQ or in an exhibit.   
 
Therefore it is important that bidders review all questions and answers, and not just those which 
they may have submitted. 
 
All Bidder Questions were submitted after the specified time on the due date of April 3, 2015. 
However, in the interest of having a well-informed bidder pool, OFM has decided to respond to 
the questions and to post both the questions and answers. 
 



Bidders’ Questions & Answers  
 

Summary of key information to collect: 
 
Question 1: Description of the current situation and the business need 

 
ANSWER: Washington state law mandates salary and fringe benefit surveys to be conducted.  
The RFQQ is designed to act as the initial procurement for the vendor pool for these cyclical and 
possible additionally mandated surveys.  In addition to vendors to conduct our surveys the RFQQ 
is designed to procure vendors who may be qualified to also offer Classification and/or 
Compensation Consulting services that may arise. 
 

Question 2:  Description of current grade/leveling approach (job evaluation, slotting, 
market pricing, combination, etc.) 
 

 ANSWER, Part A: A summary of the primary categories of employment in the  state of 
 Washington can be found at 
 http://www.hr.wa.gov/recruitment/JobSeekerServices/Pages/EmploymentCategories.aspx  

 
ANSWER, Part B: The state of Washington has one salary structure that covers the General 
Service (classified) positions at the state, both represented and non-represented (though some 
variations exist by bargaining unit).  Job descriptions and pay for each can be found at 
http://www.dop.wa.gov/CompClass/JobClassesSalaries/Pages/ClassifiedJobListing.aspx .  Pay 
grade decisions for this pay structure are determined using the whole job ranking method and 
over the years has also been adjusted (the ranking) based upon statutory classification change 
criteria and market pricing.   
 
ANSWER, Part C: Non-Represented Salary Structures include: 
1. The Washington Management Services (WMS) pay structure is a banded pay structure that 

uses job evaluation to place these management and certain individual contributors into the 
pay schedule. 
http://www.dop.wa.gov/CompClass/Management/Pages/InclusioninWashingtonManagement
Service.aspx   

2. Exempt Services pay structure uses the same general process as WMS with different 
Inclusion Criteria and a different job evaluation tool. See 
http://www.dop.wa.gov/CompClass/Management/Pages/ExemptInclusion.aspx  

3. State Officials Salary is also a banded pay plan.  These jobs are placed into “plateaus” based 
upon the job evaluation.  The Willis Point Value (proprietary) job evaluation tool is utilized for 
these positions. 
http://www.dop.wa.gov/SiteCollectionDocuments/CompensationAndJobClasses/Salary%20S
chedules/SOSA/CurrentWEBStateOfficialsSalaries.pdf  

4. More information about the structures above can be found here: 
http://www.dop.wa.gov/CompClass/Management/Pages/default.aspx    

 
ANSWER, Part D: In addition to above, the State of Washington has Special Salary Ranges for 
specified employee groups as well as separate pay structures for specified union groups such as, 
but not limited to, Washington State Ferry workers (WSF) and Washington State Patrol (WSP). 
 

o You can find more detail on Special Salary Ranges here: 
http://www.dop.wa.gov/CompClass/Compensation/Pages/SalarySchedules.aspx    

o 2013-2015 Collective Bargaining Agreements can be found here: 
http://www.ofm.wa.gov/labor/agreements/13-15/default.asp   
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Question 3:  Description of current compensation program (ranges, multiple structures, 
number of grades, annual administration, etc.) – and what’s working/what’s not.  
 

ANSWER: The General Salary Survey, which is the salary schedule that the state survey is tied 
to, is a step system with 13 steps 
(http://www.dop.wa.gov/SiteCollectionDocuments/CompensationAndJobClasses/Salary%20Sche
dules/2015Jan1_GS%20Min%20Wage%20Adj/GSGridNonRep_MinWage.pdf).  For most 
employees in this salary schedule the following things are true (please see our compensation 
rules site for exceptions. 
http://www.hr.wa.gov/rules/CivilServiceRules/Pages/Compensation.aspx) 
 

o Newly hired employees start at step A (with exceptions) and increase to C after 6 
months. After the first 6 months an employee must receive a two-step increase to base 
pay on the periodic increment day. (WAC 357-28-060) 

o The top step, step M is specifically a longevity step.  An employee cannot be appointed to 
step M upon initial hire.   

o Challenges:  No increases to the salary structure in over 6 years; maintaining a cohesive 
simple salary structure when the majority of the positions in this salary structure are 
represented by multiple unions and may bargain separately. 
 

WMS, EMS and SOSA have separate banded salary structures. 
o WMS and EMS have 4 bands each.  Above band 4 WMS has a band exclusively for 

MDs. 
o SOSA has 6 pay plateaus (pay bands where the maximum for each band is fixed). 

 
Please see collective bargaining agreements for salary schedules for WFS and WSP here: 
http://www.ofm.wa.gov/labor/agreements/13-15/default.asp  
 

Question 4: Number of unique jobs to be included in review or policy/prevalence 
questions to be asked. 
 
 ANSWER: 

o Each survey section of the RFQQ covers a summary of the jobs to be included in the review.   
o For the section titled Other Classification and/or Compensation Consulting Services, the 

specific body of work has yet to be defined. 
 

Question 5: Levels of jobs to be included – executive, managers, salaried, hourly 
 

 ANSWER: 
o Each survey section of the RFQQ covers a summary of the jobs to be included in the review.   
o For the section titled Other Classification and/or Compensation Consulting Services the 

scope is yet to be determined. 
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Question 6: Why does the State of Washington think they need a custom survey? Is 
there a retention/recruiting issue?  

 
 ANSWER:  

o Per Statute OFM / State Human Resources (State HR) is required by law (RCW 
41.06.160) to undertake comprehensive salary and fringe benefit surveys to determine the 
prevailing pay rates for jobs that are comparable to state jobs.  There are similar 
mandates for the WSF and WSP surveys.  

o Some of the jobs at the State have retention/recruiting issues but they are not the sole 
reason that the survey is being conducted. 
 

Question 7: What have they done to date to diagnose the issue? 
 
  ANSWER: Per statute, these surveys are completed.  This question is not applicable.  
 
Question 8: Do they understand where they pay for these jobs against existing data 
(i.e., a grades-based cut from PayNet)? 
 

ANSWER: The surveys outlined in section A, B and C in section 3.2 have been done 
regularly for at least one other cycle.  Against that custom survey data we understand 
where we pay in comparison to this market. 

 
Question 9:  How many participants will be solicited?  

 
ANSWER: This is specified under each survey in the RFQQ – section 3.2.  Where it is not 
defined, we do not have the specifics at this time. 
 

Question 10:  Do you have contacts at requested participants?   
 
ANSWER: For the state salary survey, state patrol survey and marine survey we do have 
contacts at requested participants.  This list may need to be updated as the information will 
be two years old once the process is restarted.  There may be new participants added to 
these surveys as necessary.  

 
Question 11:  Can we use the sponsor name during the solicitation of participants?   

 
ANSWER: Yes 
 

Question 12:  In what markets do you currently compete for talent?   
 
ANSWER: This is highly dependent upon which survey we are discussing. RCW 
41.06.160 for the state salary survey specifies public and private employers within the 
state of Washington.  We also include other jobs from other states in custom surveys.  
More information related to participants in section 3.2 of the RFQQ. 
 

Question 13:   What current sources of market data do they use now?   
 
ANSWER:  Per statute, we use the custom salary surveys and at times supplement with 
ERI data. 
 



Question 14:  Are there current 3rd party compensation surveys that they want 
incorporated?  

 
ANSWER: ERI may be incorporated.  We already pay for this license.  We could discuss 
the use of other applicable surveys to collect market data. 
 

Question 15:  Compensation Elements: Base, STI, STI Target, TC are minimums 
 
ANSWER: Total Cash, STI’s and other incentives are not part of what we collect in our 
surveys. 
 

Question 16:  Do you need Long term incentives, Long term incentives at target, Total 
direct compensation?  
 

ANSWER: These are not applicable to public sector surveys. 
 

Question 17:  Will you need Total Reward values? If yes, benefits data must be 
collected. 

 
ANSWER: The initial intent of the survey is not to calculate total reward values (defined as  
a value based upon base pay, benefits and retirement), however, if this service is offered 
by your organization, it may be helpful to understand the costs involved if this were a 
direction the State decided to go.  It is the intention of the survey to collect the prevalence 
of fringe benefit information.  

 
Question 18:  Will execs be included? If yes, are there existing grades/evaluations? 
 

ANSWER: At this time, there are no Executives included in the known scope of any of 
these surveys or consulting services. 
 

Question 19:   Will hourly staff be included? 
 
ANSWER: Yes 

 
Question 20:   Will you provide job descriptions? 

 
ANSWER: Benchmarks and their descriptions are already established for the surveys that 
are defined in the RFQQ. 
 

Question 21:   How many unique positions will be reviewed? 
 
ANSWER: This is specified under each survey in the RFQQ – section 3.2.  Where it is not 
defined, we do not have the specifics at this time. 
 

Question 22:   Are there current and approved job documentation/job descriptions for 
positions to be reviewed? 
 

ANSWER: Benchmarks and their descriptions are already established for the surveys that 
are defined in the RFQQ.  The vendor may be asked to review these descriptions as part of 
their assessment. 
 
 
 
 



Question 23:  Will you need answers to policy and/or prevalence questions? If so, 
which?   

ANSWER: The policy, prevalence, fringe benefit and additional pay information will vary by 
survey.  Please see attached files for what has been done in the past.  Additional surveys 
will include much of what was included in the past.  A statement of work with  detailed 
scope of each survey will be provided to successful vendors in each vendor pool prior to 
2nd tier bid process.  Estimates provided to the RFQQ are intended to be estimates only but 
should be reasonably associated with the 2nd tier bid. 
 

Question 24:   Will participants be provided with complimentary results?  
 
ANSWER: Yes 
 

Question 25:  Will you want job tables only, or will they want a ‘company vs. market’ 
deliverable? 

 
ANSWER: See attached examples of last year's deliverables; the final deliverables should 
include roughly the content included in each of the additional files. 
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